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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

London Town Publik House is a full two-story structure over elevated
basement, seven-bays wide and three bays deep, with brick walls laid
in Flemish bond. The inn is covered by a hipped roof cut off near the
top to form a deck and the deck is sheltered by a slightly elevated gable
roof which is terminated at either end by a massive interior chimney.
A finely enriched cornice marks the roof line on all four sides. There
is a molded brick water table and a belt course at the second floor level.
The south (front) facade, facing the abandoned ferry approach road, is
dominated by a three-bay wide projecting central pavilion, which is sur-
mounted by a pediment with a small lunette in its center. Windows in the
south elevation are topped by flat brick arches and those in the rear and
end elevations, by segmental brick arches. First floor windows have nine
over nine light sash and second-story windows have nine over six sash.
The main entrance, in the south facade, is approached by a flight of brick
and stone steps. The north or rear facade lacks the projecting pavilion
of the front and is also fenestrated differently, having four widely
spaced windows instead of the six windows across on the south side.

During its use as an alms house (1828-1966), the building was repaired and
a few minor wood partition walls inserted, but no structural changes were
made. The house has a cross hall plan with a broad central Living hall,
the width of the central pavilion, extending through the structure from
front to rear. At midpoint the main hall is intersected at right angles
by narrower side halls that lead to the entrance in each end. Four equal-
sized rooms, each with its own fireplace, are located in the four corners
of the inn. The north (rear) half of the main hall also has a fireplace
and forms a very large room. The south (front) half of the main hall serves
as the entrance hall and contains the stairway, which is located against
the west cross wall. The main (south) entrance door, with 10 panels, has
original H and L hinges. The cross walls are brick and the openings lead-
ing from the main hall to the lateral halls are framed with round brick
arches. The end doors have six panels, H and L hinges, and small rectan-
gular transoms above them. Interior walls are plastered and the fireplaces
have simple wooden mantels. The windows are deep set and most of them
retain their original glass. The doors and most hardware are also original.
Original cloak and hat boards--some with their wooden pegs--are still in
place in the main hall, and an original hearthstone remains in the north-
west room. Two rooms have small original cupboards and the tavern also

has its original flooring, revealed when a modern tile covering was removed.
Also found was the original fireplace of the warming kitchen behind a later
smaller opening. Blocks of wood were placed into the brick suggesting that
the overmantle was originally intended to be paneled. Common rooms were
located in the basement where the fieldstone foundation can be seen. All
of the timbers are original, but the brick on the basement floor is new,

the old having been removed to install heating and plumbing. In the
restoration the 19th century one-story wooden porches on the east and west
ends were removed and steps put in their place, designed from descriptions
by an architect specializing in such restorations. Infra-red photographs
have been taken and it is hoped these will aid in a mapping of the original
town by revealing old roadbeds and building foundations.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

London Town Publik House, erected around 1745-50 is an outstanding
example of a large, seven-bay wide, brick inn of excellent Georgian
design. With its original simple interiors unaltered and much of the
original glass and hardware intact, the inn maintains its integrity as

an unusually complete example of colonial architecture at its functional
best.

London Town Public House, located on the south bank of the South River,
about 4 miles from Annapolis, was constructed around 1745-50 as a large
inn to serve a major north-south turnpike and its ferry crossing at
South River. All land travellers passed by way of London Town Ferry to
and from Philadelphia and Annapolis, Williamsburg or Mount Vernon.

The overgrown remains of the deeply sunken ferry approach road are still
visible a few yards south of the inn. Sites of original houses can be
discerned from infra-red photographs of the area. Located on the
original land grant to Colonel William Burgess, the town of London Town
was composed of about 101 lots of which the Publik House was lot number
74, bounded by Fish and Scott Streets. Today it is the only building
of the town which remains intact. The structure and ten acres of land
were acquired by Anne Arundel County in 1828 and the building was
utilized until 1966 as an Alms or County Poor House. The house is now
being reconditioned for use as a county museum.




Letter, Mrs. Marshall H. Nelker, Chairman, London Town Publik House
Commission, to Roy E. Appleman, Acting Chief, Office of Archeology and
Historic Preservation, August 11, 1967, property files, Historic Sites
Survey, NPS, Washington, D.C.

Carey, Laurel S., "This is London Town, Anne Arundel County, Maryland, U.S.A
(unpublished report completed for Mrs. Marshall H. Nelker), 1967, unpaged
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7. Description (Continued) (1) London Town Publik House

BOUNDARY
Although the county of Anne Arundel has acquired 10,2l acres of land around
the Publik House it does little to secure a protective environment for the
house, The area is moderately populated and houses are built right to the
far edge of the deep culvert formed by the old ferry approach road.
For this reason the bonndary is being drawn to include only the land
immediately surrounding the Publik House but including additional land on the
far side of the old ferry dock to keep this important feature within the
landmerk. Beginning at the southesst corner of the lendmark, the boundary
lies along the far side of the 1pper ridge of the old ferry docks at the
southern property line of the adjoining property beginning at the river bank
and extending to a point in line with the approach road at the place where it
curves to pass nefore tne house, then from this point following along the
far edge of the approach road to the place where it widens for a turn-around
then east in a line from t 'is point to the riverbank(this line falls
within a declivity to the nortn-of the house), then south along the river-
bank to the point of berinning, as shown on tie sketch map in red.
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